
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

 

TEL. (860) 870-3120     TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE      FAX (860) 870-3122 
 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2025, 7:00 P.M. 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (On Non-Agenda Items): 

 
III. ACTIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. Plan of Conservation & Development, Chapter 4-Conservation Strategies, Natural 
Resource Preservation: Historic Preservation. 
 

2. Report - Farmland Preservation Program. 
 

3. Report - Open Space Preservation Program. 
a. 16 Penfield Avenue. 
b. Somers Road, Assessor Parcel 191-001-0000. 
c. Executive Session to Discuss Possible Open Space Purchases. 

 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. FY 24-25 Budget & Expenditure Update. 
 

2. Approval of May 20, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

3. Correspondence/Discussion: 
a. Ad Hoc Ellington Trails Committee – Monthly Minutes. 
b. Community Outreach – Ellington Farmer’s Market, Saturday, August 30th. 
c. Connecticut Farmland Trust, Summer 25 Newsletter.  

 
V. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Next Meeting is scheduled for August 12, 2025 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Conservation Commission. 
Join Zoom Meeting via Link: Join Zoom Meeting by Phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89865149401 1-646-558-8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 898 6514 9401 Meeting ID: 898 6514 9401 
Passcode: 355512 Passcode: 355512 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89865149401
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


RAW LAND
54.45 Sqft - 16 Penfield Ave, Ellington, Connecticut
06029

For Sale
LISTING TYPE :

Land
PROPERTY TYPE : $475,000PRICE :

SNAPSHOT: :

Pictures Google Map

SNAPSHOT:

AVAILABILITY

54.45 Sqft
12 in 11 days

LAND FOR SALE
Acreage :
Visits :

$475,000

THE GEENTY GROUP,

REALTORS

765 East Main Street

AGENT INFO

Geenty Group
View website



203-488-1005



CONTACT AGENT

Full Name

Phone

Email

54.45 Acres of Undeveloped Land.

2 Parcels 16 Penfield Ave in Ellington is 27 acres with a 1500SF
Cinderblock building and Windsorville Road in Vernon.

The property is currently accessed by a drive way off Penfield Road.
Build your own nature preserve and home on the acreage or develop it
into an outdoor recreation park.

54.45 Acres of
Undeveloped Land.

2 Parcels 16 Penfield
Ave in Ellington is 27
acres with a 1500SF
Cinderblock building

and Windsorville
Road in Vernon.

The property is
currently accessed
by a drive way off

Penfield Road. Build
your own nature

preserve and home

   

3

 

 Home Our Offerings Search News Our Team Services Contact

 203-488-1005  info@GeentyGroup.com

https://geentygroup.com/properties/Brice/
https://www.geentygroup.com/
tel:203-488-1005
https://geentygroup.com/properties/289-Land-16-Penfield-Ave-Ellington-Connecticut-06029-USD475-000/
https://geentygroup.com/properties/289-Land-16-Penfield-Ave-Ellington-Connecticut-06029-USD475-000/
https://geentygroup.com/properties/289-Land-16-Penfield-Ave-Ellington-Connecticut-06029-USD475-000/
https://geentygroup.com/properties/features/pdf?pid=289
https://geentygroup.com/properties/289-Land-16-Penfield-Ave-Ellington-Connecticut-06029-USD475-000/
https://geentygroup.com/properties/289-Land-16-Penfield-Ave-Ellington-Connecticut-06029-USD475-000/
https://geentygroup.com/
https://geentygroup.com/
https://geentygroup.com/
https://geentygroup.com/all-listings/
https://geentygroup.com/search/
https://geentygroup.com/news/
https://geentygroup.com/our-team/
https://geentygroup.com/services/
https://geentygroup.com/contact-us/
mailto:info@GeentyGroup.com
mailto:info@GeentyGroup.com




The Geenty Group, Realtors
COPYRIGHT © 2020 THE GEENTY GROUP, REALTORS, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
765 EAST MAIN STREET, BRANFORD, CONNECTICUT 06405 - INFO@GEENTYGROUP.COM - 203.488.1005

 

land
PRESENT USE: :

land, house site
POTENTIAL USE: :

2LOT(S) :
2,371,842 Sqft

AREA SF :
54.45 Sqft

ACREAGE :

Ind-ResiZONING : 0 ftFRONTAGE :

Unknown
AVAILABILITY :

Unknown
PROVIDER :

Connected
AVAILABILITY :

Public Utility
PROVIDER :

$0LAND : $0TOTAL : $0TAXES :

SITE

UTILITIES

SEWAGE SYSTEM GAS

POWER

ASSESSMENT

Send

Message

reCAPTCHA

Verification expired. Check the checkbox
again.

I'm not a robot
Privacy  - Terms

on the acreage or
develop it into an

outdoor recreation
park.

https://geentygroup.com/
https://geentygroup.com/
https://www.facebook.com/GeentyGroup/
https://twitter.com/KTG_CRE?ref_src=twsrc%5Egoogle%7Ctwcamp%5Eserp%7Ctwgr%5Eauthor
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/terms/


1000.02.00270.10.50103
Part Time---Conservation Commission--

$1,600.00 $1,040.00 $1,040.00 $560.00 $0.00 $560.00
35.00%

1000.02.00270.20.60221
Advertising Printing---Conservation Commission--

$400.00 $371.00 $371.00 $29.00 $0.00 $29.00
7.25%

1000.02.00270.20.60222
Dues & Subscriptions---Conservation Commission--

$1,350.00 $1,740.00 $1,740.00 ($390.00) $0.00 ($390.00)
-28.89%

1000.02.00270.20.60223
Travel---Conservation Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00270.20.60234
Professional Development---Conservation Commission

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00270.20.60250
Contracted Services---Conservation Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00270.20.60254
St of CT Surcharges---Conservation Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00270.20.60341
Office Supplies---Conservation Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00270.30.60341
Office Supplies---Conservation Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000Fund: $3,350.00 $3,151.00 $3,151.00 $199.00 $0.00 $199.00

Town of Ellington

Account Number / Description

General Ledger - On Demand Report

Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance
Budget Balance

% Remaining Bud
Print accounts with zero balance

Include PreEncumbranceAccount Mask: ??????00270??????? AllAccount Type: Print Detail
7/1/2024From Date:Fiscal Year:   2024-2025 6/30/2025To Date:

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeInclude Inactive Accounts

Printed: 07/01/2025 1:04:03 PM rptNewOnDemandGLRptReport: 2024.1.47 Page: 1



Town of Ellington

Account Number / Description

General Ledger - On Demand Report

Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance
Budget Balance

% Remaining Bud
Print accounts with zero balance

Include PreEncumbranceAccount Mask: ??????00270??????? AllAccount Type: Print Detail
7/1/2024From Date:Fiscal Year:   2024-2025 6/30/2025To Date:

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeInclude Inactive Accounts

End of Report

$3,350.00 $3,151.00 $3,151.00 $199.00 $0.00 $199.00Grand Total:

Printed: 07/01/2025 1:04:03 PM rptNewOnDemandGLRptReport: 2024.1.47 Page: 2



2025_05-20 Conservation Commission 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2025, 7:00 PM 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Vice Chairman Robert Zielfelder. Jr., Regular Members James Gage, Laurie 

Burstein, Kathy Caton, and Alternate Ann Harford 
  
ABSENT:   Chairman Rebecca Quarno, and Regular Member Sean Dwyer 
 
STAFF:  John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner and Ashley DuBois, Recording Clerk  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chairman Robert Zielfelder Jr. called the Conservation Commission 

meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (On Non-Agenda Items): None 
 

III. ACTIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. Plan of Conservation & Development, Chapter 4-Conservation Strategies, Natural 
Resource Preservation: Historic Preservation. 

   
John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner, notified the commission the Request for Proposal 
is under review in the Finance office. Once approved, it will be sent to the State Historic 
Preservation Office.  

 
2. Report - Farmland Preservation Program. 

 
 Nothing new to report. 
 

3. Report - Open Space Preservation Program. 
 

Commissioner Gage announced that property located at 16 Penfield Avenue is now on the 
market. The property currently has a non-operational radio station located on it, along with 
currently used trails. Roughly half of the property is in the Town of Ellington and the other 
half is in the Town of Vernon. Previous efforts have been made to acquire some of the 
property for its potential to improve trails along the Hockanum River. The Town of Ellington 
granted a 15-foot access easement across its property in the early 1980s to allow access 
to the radio station. Commissioners generally agreed that acquiring the land would be a 
major asset. However, at this time, the land trust was not interested in pursuing the land 
due to the high price of the land, so the information was brought to the commission and 
town’s attention. The commission agreed to keep an eye on the status of the property, 
attempt to reach out to a caretaker of the property for more information, and if the 

  
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120     TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE      FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

about:blank


2025_05-20 Conservation Commission 
Minutes 

Page 2 of 3 
 

opportunity were to arise, pose the idea of donating the land to the town. Commissioners 
continued to discuss the characteristics of the property.  

 
a. Executive Session to Discuss Possible Open Space Purchases. 

   
John Colonese asked the commission if they would like to enter an executive session 
to discuss the possible open space purchases of 19 Lord Road and the 20-acre 
property off Somers Road abutting the State Forest as he has obtained additional 
information from the owners of the properties.  
 
MOVED (BURSTEIN) SECONDED (GAGE) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 7:20 PM FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
DISCUSSING POTENTIAL OPEN SPACE ACQUISTIONS INVITING COMMISSION 
MEMBERS, THE ASSISTANT TOWN PLANNER, AND RECORDING CLERK.  
 
MOVED (HARFORD) SECONDED (BURSTEIN) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
EXIT EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 7:31 PM.  

 
II. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
 

1. FY 24-25 Budget & Expenditure Update: 
  

2. Approval of April 15, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
MOVED (GAGE) SECONDED (CATON) TO APPROVE THE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES OF APRIL 15, 2025, AS WRITTEN. 

 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 
 

a. Ad Hoc Ellington Trails Committee – Monthly Minutes. 
 

Commissioner Harford updated the commission on several new developments. First, 
the Town of Vernon provided materials for a bridge and the Trails Committee built the 
bridge on the Maple Grove trail. Second, emergency signs on all trails are installed. 
Next, projects for the Highlands trail area, off Stein Rd, are completed. However, there 
is one bridge that is not big enough for an emergency quad to access, so there is 
consideration for rebuilding the bridge. Additionally, the committee ordered and 
received materials for a walkway north of the pond near 7 Nutmeg Drive that’s in need 
of repair. Vice Chairman Zielfelder added the Scouts recently did a service project at 
Crystal Ridge trail where they did some general upkeep maintenance, leveled some 
spots, and improved some drainage in a wet area. Lastly, John Colonese added that a 
cover for the small amphitheater at the Batz property was approved yesterday by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission.  

 
b. Community Outreach – Ellington Farmer’s Market. 

 
The Farmers Market coordinator provided the following dates the commission could 
host a table: August 30th - Meet Your Community Day and October 11th - Go Green 
Day. The commissioners preferred the August 30th date, particularly due to the 
attendance of other town entities, so they plan to host an information table that day. 
Commissioners began discussions for booth ideas.  
 
 

 



2025_05-20 Conservation Commission 
Minutes 

Page 3 of 3 
 

c. Ellington Trash, Recycling, and Disposal Information. 
 
John Colonese noted that Sam Saunders, Recycling & Refuse Manager, provided the 
disposal brochure and added there is a lot more information on the Public Works 
website. Public Works was also at the Earth Day event providing the community with 
information on recycling. Sam Saunders is willing to attend a meeting to present 
disposal and recycling information if the commission is interested. 
 

d. Mailing of Commission Meeting Packets 
 

The Planning Department recently heard from the Town Administrator regarding the 
mailing of commission packets. The mailing of board and commission packets costs 
the town between $10,000 and $15,000 each year. The town would like to curtail this 
service and have boards and commissions institute alternative methods for receiving 
meeting packets. 
 
The commission is currently getting a copy of the meeting packet by email. 
Commissioners could also come to the Annex foyer to pick up the packet prior to the 
meeting or it could be made available at the meeting. Commissioners generally seemed 
interested in having the packet available at the meeting, although some were okay with 
an email only.  
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

MOVED (HARFORD) SECONDED (CATON) TO ADJOURN THE CONSERVATION 
COMMISSION MEETING AT 7:53 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
__________________________ 
Ashley DuBois, Recording Clerk 
 






























	CONSERVATION COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2025, 7:00 P.M.
	IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:
	V. ADJOURNMENT:

